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Securities and Exchange Commission :
450 Fifth Street, N'W. s 055 -
Washington, DC 20549 - B

Re:  AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a class action complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York on October 8, 2003 against
the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in Appendix A (the “Funds”) and the Funds’

affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The Funds make this filing pursuant to Section 33
of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Sincerely,

s

Paul M. Miller

Enclosure
CC:  Shaswat Das "
Domenick Pugliese /)PQQCESSED
i DEC 08 2003

THOHISON
FIMANCIAL




AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

APPENDIX A

Name Registration CIK No.
No.

AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc. 811-00126 | 0000029292
AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc. 811-09329 | 0001085421
AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc. 811-09687 | 0001090504
AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc. 811-00204 | 0000019614
AllianceBermnstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc. 811-07707 0001018368
The AllianceBernstein Portfolios 811-05088 | 0000812015
- AllianceBernstein Growth Fund
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series, Inc. 811-09176 0001062417
- Biotechnology Portfolio ‘
- Technology Portfolio
- Premier Portfolio
AllianceBernsteinTrust 811-10221 0001129870
- AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein International Value Fund
AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-06730 | 0000889508
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc. 811-01716 | 0000081443
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 | 0000350181
AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, Inc. 811-07916 0000910036
AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, Inc. 811-00134 0000069752
AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series, Inc. 811-21081 0001172221
- U.S. Large Cap Portfolio
AllianceBernstein All Asia Investment Fund, Inc. 811-08776 0000930438
AllianceBemstein Greater China 97 Fund, Inc. 811-08201 0001038457
AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-08527 0001050658
AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc. 811-01415 0000095669
AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc. 811-06028 | 0000859605
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc. 811-08426 0000920701
AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, Inc. 811-06554 | 0000883676
AllianceBernstein Bond Fund, Inc. 811-02383 0000003794
- Corporate Bond Portfolio
- Quality Bond Portfolio
- U.S. Government Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc. 811-08188 | 0000915845
AllianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc. 811-07391 0001002718
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc. 811-09160 | 0001029843
AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strategy Fund, Inc. 811-06251 0000873067




Sanford C. Bernstein Fund, Inc.

- Short Duration Portfolio

Intermediate California Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate Diversified Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate New York Municipal Portfolio

811-05555

0000832808

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund, Inc.
- National Porfolio

- California Portfolio

Insured California Portfolio

Insured National Portfolio

- New York Portfolio

811-04791

0000798737

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund IT
- Arizona Portfolio

- Florida Portfolio

- Massachusetts Portfolio

- Michigan Portfolio

- Minnesota Portfolio

- New Jersey Portfolio

- Ohio Portfolio

- Pennsylvania Portfolio

- Virginia Portfolio

811-07618

0000899774




APPENDIX B

Affiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

Name CIK No. | Registration | IARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding LP 0000825313 | 001-09818 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management Corporation N/A 801-39910 | 107445
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 | 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 | N/A

00250.0073 #435968




8 - ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
" SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,

. FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME

. FUND,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT.
~ SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

' CHARLES BEALY, Individually and on Behalf of
A]l Others Similarly Slmated .

Plaintiff, .
Cvs.

. ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
. HOLDINGS L.P., ALLIANCE CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT CORPORATION, ALLIANCE -

" 'CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P,, AXA
" FINANCIAL, INC,, ALLIANCEBERNSTE_IN '
~ TECHNOLOGY FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
‘GROWTH & INCOME FUND, .
" ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH CARE FUND,
. ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED VALUE |
- FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP
GROWTH , ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL
" ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND,

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE

~*GROWTH FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

~ SELECT INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY
. PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE
" FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN QUASAR
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO,

" . "FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BALANCED
" - SHARES, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
“ DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND,
 ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE
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CIVIL ACTION NO
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

\J.

Yy 8@ %'é .




" VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN U.S.

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
- CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO,

- DEBT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL

.. VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY

~INCOME FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

- LARGE CAP PORTFOLIO, GLOBAL & - -
INTERNATIONAL STOCK FUNDS, *
"ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN ALL-ASIA
- INVESTMENT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN 3
" GLOBAL VALUE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GREATER CHINA '97
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN -
INTERNATIONAL PREMIER GROWTH FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL SMALL CAP FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE
. PRIVATIZATION FUND,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT ]NVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO, -
. ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVFSTOR
SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO, - -
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO,-
- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS
GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST,

"ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND

- QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S.

- GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO,
"ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET

. STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND

[caption continued on next page}
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ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI-MARKET
STRATEGY TRUST, ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN
SHORT DURATION, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE CALIFORNIA MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE DIVERSIFIED MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE NEW YORK MUNI
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
ARJZONA PORTFOLIO, .
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNTINCOME FUND MASSACHUSETTS
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND MICHIGAN PORTYCLIG,
ALUANCEBERNSTEDN MUNI INCOME FUND
MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNJ INCOME FUND
NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
NEW YORK PORTFOLIQ,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUN! INCOME FUND
OHIO PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND PENNSYLVANIA
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUN]
INCOME FUND VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH &
INCOME FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
HEALTH CARE FUND, INC,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP
GROWTH, INC,,

|esption continued on next pagel
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o - VALUE FUND, INC.; ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

| INCOME FUND INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
- SERIES BIOTECENOLOGY PORTFOLIO, INC,,
- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE

" FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER

. GROWTH FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
- - SELECT INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY
" PORTFOLIO, INC,; ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

QUASAR FUND,; INC,, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
 SELECT INVESTOR SERIES PREMIER
_-PORTFOLIO INC,, ALLLANCEBERNSTEIN
" UTILITY INCOME FUND, INC.,
- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BALANCED SHARES
~ INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED
- VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL VALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
- VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND, INC,,

" "ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE

FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY

VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

" BLENDED STYLE SERIES - U.S. LARGE CAP

~'PORTFOLIO, INC., GLOBAL & .

‘ INTERNATIONAL STOCK FUNDS, INC

. ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN ALL-ASIA
“INVESTMENT FUND, INC,, -

. ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE

~ FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GREATER

CHINA '97 FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

~: INTERNATIONAL PREMIER GROWTH FUND,

INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL SMALL CAP
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW
EUROPE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
WORLDWIDE PRIVATIZATION FUND, INC.,

[caption continued on next page]




- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND

- INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, INC., -

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR

'SERIES-BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO, INC., -

~ ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES PREMIER PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
- SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS

- GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST, INC.,

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND -

. QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO, INC.,
_ ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND USs. .
- GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO, INC., '
* ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET
- DEBT FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN - .
'GLOBAL STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND,

INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI-MARKET

STRATEGY TRUST, INC., |

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SHORT DURATION,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE
. CALIFORNIA MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC..-
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN .I_NTERMEDIA_TF _
DIVERSIFIED MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC.,

- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTER’\/IEDLATE NEW v
- YORK MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC., '

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI TNCOME FUND
- NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, INC.,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND -

" ARIZONA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
~ ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
"‘CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, INC., o

- INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
. ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
FLORIDA PORTFOLIQ, INC.,, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MASSACHUSETTS PORTFOLIC, INC.,
[caption continued on next page]




" ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND

" ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND '

" OHIO PORTFOLIO, INC.,

 TECHNOLOGY HEDGE FUND, ACM

ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO, INC.,

 MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, INC.,,

"~ NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIO; INC.,
~ ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND

NEW YORK PORTFOLIO, INC.,

" .ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI ]NCOME FUND :
PENNSYLVANIA PORTFOLIO, INC., _
'ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
 VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO, INC., GERALD
MALONE, CHARLES SCHAFFRAN, ACM

- TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS LLP, EDWARD J.
 STERN, CANARY. INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT, LLC, CANARY CAPITAL
 PARTNERS, LLC, CANARY CAPITAL

- PARTNERS, LTD., and DOES 1 - 100,

Defeﬁdallts. :

Plalntlff Charles Healy ( ‘P}amtlff’) by hlS attomeys as and for h]S complamt al]eges the‘ e

followmg upon personal knowledge as to- hlmself and’ hlS acts and as to alI other matters upon]

information and belief the followmg: '

i NATURE OF THE ACTION |

o1 Thisisa class actlon on behalf of a class (the C]ass”) of all purchasers redeemers
o and holders of AlhanceBemsteln famr]y of funds (as deﬁned below), Who purchased held or
.otherwise acquired shares between October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003 (the_. Class Penod”),

seeking to pursue remedies under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), the Securities




' Exehange Actof] 9"34 (the “Exchange Act”), the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “Investment
Company Act™), and for common law breach of fiduciary duties. v

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

» 2._- L .'fhe elalms asserted herem arise under and pm"suant to Sectlons 10(b), and 20(a) of |

the Exchange Act, [] 5 U S C. §§ 783(b) and 78t(a)], and Rule IOb 5 promulgated thereundel [17
N | C. F R §24O IOb 5] Addmonally, this action arises under Sections 11 and 15 of the Secunues Actv
of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 77k, 771(a)(2), and 77(0)] and pursuant to §36 of the |

- Investment Company Act[15U. S C. § 80a- 35]

‘3. . This Court has _]urlsdlct]on over the subject matter of this action pursuant to § 27 of _
the Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. § 78aa]; Section 22 ofthe Seoun'ties Act[15U8.C. § 77v];
and §36 of the Investment Company Act[15US.C.§ 80a—35] | |

o 4 . Venue is proper in tlns District pursuant to 28 U S.C.§ 1391(b), as %n?my of the acts
'and :prz.a‘cnces eomplalned_o_f herem occurred i in substantial part in ‘tlns Dlstnct.
5 . , In connection_ with the -acts a]]eged‘ in this oonqplailnt, defEnoants, directly o} e :
| indifécf]y, u‘sed.the vmeans‘_anel'in’stfumentalities of in.‘ferstate-commerce, i‘nc_luding,.but nof limited
;to; the meﬂs; interstate telephone communications and the faoilities of the néﬁonal securiﬁes; _

" markets.

PARTIES
6 ‘ Plaintiff bought and held shares of AllianceBemstein Tech Fund, Inc. during the Class

Period a_nd_ has suffered damages as a result of the wrongful acts of defendants as alleged berein.
7. Def_en‘dam Alliance Capital Management Holdings L.P. conducts its diversified

investment management services business through Alliance Capital Management L.P. Alliance

-




Capital Management Holdings L.P.’s prin‘cipal p,l'acev of business i,s‘lvocated within rthis' judicial_ |
disvtrictvai_tvll345 Avenue of itvhe Americas, NeW York7NY 10105.
| 8 beifendant Alliancé Capital Manégément Co'rpolrati:bh. conducts 1ts divers"iﬁ.e‘d; ’,
o ﬁ'nvestfneht managément s'eﬁfi:ces‘ bus.iness.: ;-\lliance C_apifal Manage.r\r'x‘entiC(v)rpofatioh’sipr‘incipali‘
- place of bvl-llsi.ness is Jocated within tlﬁsjudicial disfri ctat 1345 Avenue of the Américeis, New Yofk, .
N’Y_'lo‘lvos:. j | o
| 9 - .Defendant AIHance 'Ca;iital Managem.ént L.P. (“Alliance Capiml Managemént”)‘
provides diversified invesfment managefnent and related services globallyto a broad range of clients
including institufional investors, private clients, individual investprs and institutional _investbrs._
Alliance Cap:itgl Management also provides a broad offeﬁng of investment products, global in scope, |
, With é}ipélﬁti se in both bgrow‘th-land value-briented strategies, coupledIWith a ﬁxed income capabiiity  ‘ .
An bo’fcﬁ téx_able aﬁd’ték—exerript securities. Al_liaﬁc‘e Capital Mana.gem'entvdperates in “fo‘ur busv.iﬁe'}s_;s‘ -
- “segl.n.ex.lts:: Iﬁstitﬁtioqaf Iﬁﬁésnnént Managément' Services, P:rivatve' ‘CIieﬁt‘Seﬁice‘s, Retai]'SerVi.ce.s,
o and Iﬁéfiﬁ_xﬁonal Research Services. Alliance Capital'Manég.eme:ﬁtvéls“o‘ma‘ivl.i_t.aiﬁs its pﬁhcipal piace ’

:' of business within ‘thi‘s vjudirv:ial divst‘rict at ] 3'45 Avenue of thé Ameri‘cas, New Yérk,-N‘f 101 05 |
10. _ Défendanf AXA Financial, Inc. is elmgaged in‘ _ﬁnanﬁial p:‘rotectjo‘r.l‘»and wealth
. management. The Compa:ny opéfates primarily ih Wéstem Eﬁrope, North America and tﬁe Aéié—
‘. Pa;:iﬁc fegic;n‘, and, to a lesser extént, in otiler regi‘ohs including Ihg= Middle East, Africa and South . ‘

America. - AXA Financial, Inc. is a De]awéfe corporation which méintain its principal place of |

business within this judicial district at 1290 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10104,




» 1.1. Defendants Alllance Capital Management Ho]dmgs LP Alliance Capxta]
Management Corponatlon Alliance Capital Management L.P., and AXA Fmanc1a1 Inc. gfe ‘
-collectwely referred to as “Alhance Cap1tal ” L

; IZ Defendant AllianceBernstein Techrielo gy Fund (the f‘AllvianceBex;x‘lstein Tecﬁ F und”)

isa mutua] fund that is reglstered under the [nvestment Company Act and managed by Alhance ”

= ' Capxtal Wlth its pnnmpa] p]ace of business located at 1 345 Avenue of the Amencas New York NY

1_0105. The fund seeks capital appreciation; current meome1smc1dental. The fund normally mvest_s ‘
atleast 80% of assets in the securities of companies expected to benefit from technologieal advances"
' and impfovéments. I;c typically invests all assets in equity securities;.howeve'r, debt securities and'
preferre‘dvst'o'cks with pvrice—apprécia»ti on_potenti almaybe purchﬁsed.‘Thé fun‘d’may also seek income y
by '\‘Nriting call options. It can invest up to 10% of assets ivn foreign securities. Currenily, the fuhd |
- assets un‘d“er manageﬁment .tobta‘lsv:$3'.2 billion. | R |
“ 13. -Defe'ndants' AllianoeBérﬁstein’fechndioéyf’uf_ld, AHianéeBemstemGrowth&lﬁeefne_' _,
" Fund, All_ianceBemstein Héélth | Care. fund‘ Aliianceééfnefein' Diseiblined >\‘fa1ue. 'Funel, B
: -A'llianceBelnefeill Mid- Cap Gxowth AlllanceBemstem Real E‘state. Iﬁve'stmént Fuﬁd :
A]haﬁceBemstem Growth Fund AlhanceBemstcm Select Investor Serles Blotechnology Portfoho
: 'A‘.l_lianceBemstein: Small CAP -VALUE Fund, A1lianceBernstein Premierv Growth Eun_d, '.
.:‘ s AilialyceBelnstein Select IﬂVéfSFOi' Series Techn‘ology Po‘rtfoylio, AllianceBernstein Value Fuﬁd,_
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fuqd, A]lianceBemetein_ Se]ect Investor Series Preinier ?onfolio,
AlliahceBemstein Utility Income Fund, AllianceBernstein Balanced éll‘ares, Al]ianceBemstein
e Disciplin_ed Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, AllianceBernstein International

Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value

9.




- Fund, AlilianceBemstein util 1ty hlcome Fund, AllianceBernstein Value Fund, AllianceBernstein U.S.
: inrge Cap Portfolio, Global & International Stoék Funds, AlliarlceBémstéin Al'l—Asiva Investment
‘Furid,‘. Aliianc.eBémétein. Global Value Fund, AlliénceBemstein lGrggter Chma'97 Fun‘d‘,'
, ,A]li ancéBgeméteiri Intémational Prem_i er Gfowth Fund, AllianceBémstéin International .Val'uevFund,.
Alli anéeBernstefn G}éba] Small Cap Fund, Al]iahcz_eBerﬁstéiﬁ New Europe Fund,’Alliar;c‘eé_éfns"ieix‘l
| Wbri&ﬁi_de Privatization Fun‘d, AllianceB_ems’tei'n Select Investor Serie's Biote;:hnblogf Poﬁfo‘l.io, | ‘, -
o A]li;nceBér’ns‘tein Sel eci Investor Series Premier Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Seléct Investor Series
Teclmoiogy Portfolio, AlliaﬁceBemstein Americas Government Income Trust, A]lianceBerﬁstein
~ Bond Fund Corporate éond Portfolio, .AlIianceBerristeﬁn Bdnd Fund Quality Bond Portfolio,
Allia11§:eBemstein Bond Fund U.S. Government Portfolio, AlliaﬁceBemstein Emerging Markét Debt
a  » Fund, A]‘Iiance':Blgmstéin Global Strategic Income Tmst, AllianceBemstein High Yiéld Fund,
i fA.l]ianccBemstéin Multi-MarkgtStratégy’_I‘rust, AllianceBemstein Shbrt Duration, AllianceBez;nsteii) -
: In@mecﬁaﬁ California Muni Portfqlio, A,\Ali aﬁcéBern’stein Interme:divgte biversi :fi;ed Mﬁni Poﬁfolio,
Alli:éhéeB'g_ms‘.téinvIntennediate Né_w Yofk Muhiv‘Portfolio, AllianceBernst’éinv Muniv Irllcomé»Fu‘ndh
- n»‘Na“tidln‘aI Poﬂfdli_o,Al’IianceBeniéfein Mum Income Fuﬁd Arizona Poﬁfolio; A]»li_aﬁ.cé‘Bgmst‘einMﬁﬁi |
Inc‘ome ' FQnd 'Caiifon?ia P;);tfolio; AIIiaerBems_tein Muni In;:ome Fund Iﬁsuréd: Cz‘llifo.m.ia: "
. ‘ '_Por’tfql‘ié, All-ianceBemstein_ Muni Income Fund Insured National Portfolio, Alli anceBémstein Muni
.. Income Fund Florida Portfolio_, AllianceBernstein Muni ]ncovme FundMas.sachusetts Portfoiio',‘
* AllianceBernstein Muni Iﬁcohﬁe Fund Michigan Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni I_ncomebFund
Minnesota Poztfoiio, AllianceBernstein Muni Inéome Fund New Jersey Portfolio, AllianceBernstein
| MimiA Income Fund New York Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Chio Portfolié,

-~ AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Pennsylvania Portfolio, and AllianceBernstein Muni Income

-10-




Fund Virginia Portfolio (collectively referred to as the “AlljanceBemstéin funds;’) are mutual funds
‘tha't are're'a'istér’ed under t}‘1‘e iﬁvogtment Company Act and managed by Al}ianco Capital with ito
‘ pnnmpal place of busmess located at 1345 Avenue of Lhe Amencas New York NY 10105
14.. » Defendants AlhanceBemstem Techno]ogy Fund Inc Alhancechstem Growth &
‘ Incdme. Fond, Inc., AllxanceBemstem Health Care Fund, Ino., AllxanceBemstem Dv1sc‘1phned Value '
.F’hpd., Ino., A]lianceBemstein Mid-Cép Gfowth, ‘Iilc., Ailian.cE:Bemsteianeal ESiAte I’nvest_ment' "
Fund, Inc, AllianceBemstein | Growth Fund, Inc., vAlliancveBerristein Select Investor Serieé'
Bibt‘echnology‘Portfolio, lnc.., AllianceBemsfein :Small Cap Value Fu.ﬁd, Inc., AnianceBemstein
' .Premiéng Growth Fund, Inc., A]lianceBefnstoin Selecty Investor Seri‘esvTechnology Portfolio, Inc.,
~ AllianceBemstein Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Select
. Invést’br : .Series‘ Premier Portfolio, Ihé., AllialloeBerns‘c_ein Utility Income Fund, Inc.,
:‘v.v_:A]h'.énceBérfﬁstoin 'Balanc‘ed’ Sha:rés, Inc., AllianceBernstein -V,Disciplin“‘e‘d Value Fund, InCL,
 AllisnceBemstein Global Value Fund, Tne,, AllianceBemstein Intemnational Value Fund, Inc.
Al H anceB.emSté'in Real Estate Inyestment-Fund, Inc., AllionceBonistein Small Cap Va]ﬁé Fund, Inc.,

: A]liancv_éBverilstein Utility Income Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Value Fund, Ihc., A]lianceremstei'n :

: _U)S.Lafge Cap _Portfol‘io,Inc.,Global&lntemationa_l StockPunds, Inc.,AlliaﬁoeBemsteinAlI-Asia o |

‘Ivovestmen.t Fund, Inc., Allian_c_:eBemstein Global "Va_luvc Fung, Inc., Alli aooeBomsteio Greater China '
3 '97‘ F‘uod,‘ hic;, A‘lliauceBemstein .Interoational Premier. Growth Fund, Inc., AllianceB‘érnste.ix.l _ -
| 'Intematiooa]vValue Fuhd, Inc., A‘llian‘ccBemste_in Global Small Cap Fund, Inc., AllianceBemstein V
. New Eui'opev Fimd, Inc., AilianceBemstéin Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein
Select Investor Series Biotéchllology Portfolio, lnc.; AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Premier

* Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Technology = Portfolio, Inc.,
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| AllianceBernstein Americas Govemrhent Income Trust, Inc., A]IiaﬁceBemstein Bond Fund
Coqﬁorate Bond Po1.1fo'lio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Bond Fund Quality Bonc‘l Portfolio, Inc.,
Al] ianceBemstein Bond Fund U.S. Government Portfolio, Inc., ‘AI]ianceBemstein Emerging Market
Debt Fund, Inc., Allia11quemstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc., AllianceBernstein High
Yield Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strateéy Trust, Inc., AllianceBernstein Short
Duration, Inc., Allié.nceBemstein Intermediate Californja Muni Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein
Intermediate Diversified Muni Portfolio, Inc., Aili_anbeBemstcin Intermediate New York Mﬁni
Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Mt‘mi Income Fund National Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBemstein
Muni Income Fund Arizona Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBemstein Muni Income Fund California
Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Insured California Porifolio, Inc.,
AllianceBemstein Muﬁi Income Fund Insured National Portfelio, Inc., AllianceBemstein Muni
' Income Fund F]o.rida Poﬁfoﬁo, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Massachusetts Portfolio,
Inc., AllianceBemnstein Muni Iﬁcome Fund Michigan Portfolio, Inc., A]lia.nceBemsteiﬁ Muni Income
Fund Minnesota Portfolio, Iné., AIiianceBemstein Muni Income Fund New.J ersey Portfolio, Inc.,
AlliaﬁceBernstein Muni Income Fund New York Portfolio, Inc., AIliéxmeBemstein Muni Income
Fund Ohio Portfolio, Iﬁé., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Pennsylvania Portfolio, Inc.,
AllianceBemstein Mﬁni Income Fund Virginia Portfolio, Inc., {collectively referred to as’_
AllianceBernstein vRegistrants”),are thé partiés responsible for registration the AllianceBemstein
funds the under the Investment Company Act’with its principal place of business located at 1345
Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10105.

15. Defendant Gerald Malone (“Malone™) was, at all relevant times during the Class

Peﬁod., the manager of the AllianceBernstein Tech fund. Additionally, Malone managed the ACM
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Techn'ol.ogy Hedge Fund and the ACM Teclmology Pattners LLP hedge fund. On Sep‘ternber 30,
s 2003, Malone was suspended by Allianee Capital because he disregarded conﬂ_iets'of interests and
o ‘engztged n aetiyity tliat beneﬁtted_ Alliance Canital’s hedge-fnnd- oPerations at the expense of
: shareholders in the fund. o | .
16. | Defendant Charles Schar‘fran(“Schaffran”) yvas atall relevant nmes durlng the Class
Period, a marketmg executrve at Alhance Capltal who sold Alliance Capital hedge ‘funds. On R
B Sep_tember‘30, 2003, Schaffran was susp‘ended by Alliance'Capital ‘oecause he disregarded conﬂi‘cts
of interests ‘and engaged in actfvity that benefitted Alliance Capital’s hedge-fund operations at the
- expense of shareholders in the fund.
E 17.  Defendant ACM Technology Hedge Fund (the “Teclmol ogy Hedge Fund’ ’) isahedge .
:'-fund that was manaoed by defendant Malone |
‘ t1 8 Defendant ACM Technology Partners LLP (the “Technology Partners Hedge Fund”) .

isa hedge fund that was managed by defendant Malone (the Technology Hedge Fund and the‘

e, Technology Partners Hedge Fund collectxve “ACM Hedge Funds”)

19, Defendant Edward J. Stern (”Stem”) areS1dent ofNew York County, New York is,
: and was at all relevant times, the Managlng Prmcrpal of defendants Canary Capttal Partners, LLC ‘
Canary Cap1tal Partners Ltd and Canary Invéstment Management LLC (collectively, “Canary”)
20. Defendant Canary Capital Partners, LLC isa limited llabr ity company orgamzed and
vexrstmg nnder the laws of the State of New Jersey, wrth ofﬁces at 400 Plaza Duve Secaucus, New

. Jersey.
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21'. ‘Dcfen‘dant Canary Investment Management, LLC is a limited liability company
orgaﬁized and existing under the laws of the State of New Jersey, with offices at :400 Plaza Drive,
Secaucus, New Jersey.

22. Dgfendant Canary Capital Partners, Ltd. is 2 Bermuda limited liability company.

23. . Thetruenames ami capacities {(whether indivlidual‘, corporate, associate, or otherwis’e)
of defendants Does 1 through 100, inclusive, and each of them, are unknown to Plaintiff, wilo sues
said defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiffis informed and believes and thereon alleges that
each of the defenda;lté ﬁﬁtitiously riaxhed herein is legally responsible in some actionable manner
for the events described herein, and thereby proximately .c‘aused the damage to the Plaintiff and the

members of the Class.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

24.  Plaintiff briﬁgs this action as a federal ;:lass action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalfofa éllass_(the “Cla“ss”), éo.nsisting of all purchaseré, redeemers
and holders of the mutual fund éhares that are the subjepf of this lawsuit, who purchased, held, 61‘
otherwfse acquired ;Héres between October 2, 1998 and Septefnber 29, 2003, inclusive, (the *Class
Period”) and who were damgged thereby. Iéxch‘lded from the Cléss are defendanfs, the officers and
directors of the Compan?, members of their immediate families and ‘their legal representatives, heirs,
successors or assigns and any entity in which defendants-have of had a controlling intérest.

25. The mémbers of the Class are so- numérous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. Whi]e the exact number of Class ménlbers is unknown to Plaintiff at this time and
can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff belicves that there are hundreds or

thousands of members in the proposed Class.
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26.  Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class, because

- plaintiffs and all of the Class members sustained damages arising out of defendants’ wrongful

conduct coinplained of herein. |
27.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of tlle Class members and has
refained céunéel who are experienced and competent n (_:Ialss actions aﬁd secuﬁties litigation.
28. A Class Action is superior to all other available methods fof the fair and efficient
| adjudication of this contfoversy, since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as the
damages suffered by individual members of the Class may be relatively small, the expense and
burden of individual liti gatioh make it impossible for the members of the Class to individually
redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this .action as a
class action.

29.  Questions of law and fact common to the members of the Class predominate over any
questiéns that may affec_:t only individual members, in that defendants have acted on grounds
generally applicable to the eﬁtire Class. Amoﬁg the questions of law and fact common to the Class

. are: | |
(a)  Whether the federal seéurities laws were violatéd by Defendants” acts as
alléged herein; . |
(b) Whether Defendants breached their fiduciary duties by engaging in fraudulent
activity; and |
(c)' Whether pﬁe members of the .Class héve sustained darﬁages and, if so, what is

the appropriate measure of damages.
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| SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS
BACKGROUND
' 30 : ' ThlS aétxon concerns 2 fraudulent scheme and coﬁrse of actron whrch was mterrded
.‘ Vto and mdeed d1d benefit Alhance Captal, Alllance Caplta] 5 own ACM Hedge Funds and thelr:
. adv1sors atthe cxpense of unsuspectmg mutual fund mvcstors In connecnon therethh defendams |
'; ‘, vxolated thelr ﬁduc1ary dut1es to their customers in réturn for substanﬁal fees and other income for .
thcmseres and their afﬁliates.
| 31. The defendénts’ erngful conduct invd]yed “timing;’ ofmi;tuaﬁ funds. “Timing” is
an i}n"vest'ment‘ technique i‘irvolving short-term, “in and out\”vtrad‘ing of mutual fund shares. The
| t.techn‘iq_ue is designed to exploit inefficiencies in the way mutual fund companies price their shares.
| It 1s widely éél%ngwledged that tirning inures tr) the detriment of long:-‘tén‘n‘ shareholders. Béc’éuse
. bf thls 'de'tr:'rmén’tél effect, mutual fund iarospectrises‘_’typica]lj‘/staté thé’[ t1m1ng .is. monitored and the .
funds wrark to preVé-ﬁt"itf ‘N.o_netheless., in return for investments tha‘t;.w‘i.ll r.ncréa:s'eb fund rnahaggrs"
i :fées, fuﬁd rr]arragers ienter‘"in‘ro uhdiscloécd agreemém-svto all.ow‘_timh‘ig. !
L 132;_ ‘-“ In fact, certain mutual fund compzrniés }ra\re émployeés ('g‘e‘hveral']}‘r reférred t§ as the
| ";tiining pollic:e”) who are supposed o detect “timérs” and prlt a Stép ,.té their short-term tradiﬁg: ’
E va‘jcbt.ivity;‘ Nonethe]ess,vvd_efendants ar.rénge’d to give Canary, the Doe Deféndgnt%, ACM Hedge Funds,
and other rr)_arkét timers a “'péssv" wm{ thé timing police, Whv; ;}vquld look the ptl'rer way rathér than '
j : atterﬁpt to shﬁt dowﬁ their is’hort-ten.n. trading. | |
33.  The rﬁutua] fﬁnd prospectus for the AHianc‘eB:m-stein funds created thé misleadirrg '
ﬁnﬁres‘sionfhét t}re All..iaﬂceBemstc—:in funds was vigilantly protecting irr\{estOré against th‘e‘négétive

effects of timing. In fact, the opposite was true: not only did defendants sell the right to time the
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AlhanceBemstein funds to Canary, the Doe Defendants and other hedge fund investors, defendants
permitted Alliénce Capital’s own ACM Hedge Funds to time the A]lianceBemétein funds. The
prospectus was si]ent_ about these arrangements. |

34.  Asaresultof “timing” of the AllianceBernstein funds, Canary, the Doe Defendants; |
ACM Hedge Funds, oth;er timers, and defendants aﬁd their il;tennediaries profited handsomely. The
losers were unsuspecting long-term mutval fund investors. Defendants’ profits came dollar-for-
doHarbufofthdrpockeﬁ. |

TIMING

35. Mutual funds are designed for buy-and-hold investors, and are th;srefore the favored
liorhes for Amgricans’ retiremenf and college savings accounts. Nevertheless, quick—furnarouﬁd
traders routinely try to trade in and out of certain mutual funds in ordér to exploit inefﬁciehcieé in

the way‘ they set the.ir NAVs.

36. . This strategy works only because some funds use “stale” prices to calculate the value
of securities held in the fund’s povrtfoliov.- These pricés are “stale” because .they do not necessarily
reflect the “fair value” of such sécuritiés as of the time the NAV is calculated. A typical example
1s a U.S. mutual fund that hol;is Japanese shares. Bece;gse bf the time zone difference, the J apaﬁese

.market may close at 2:00 a.m. New York time. Ifthe YU.S. mutual fund manager uses the closing
prices of the J apanese shares tn his ot her fund to arrive at an NAV at 4:00 prn in New York, he or
she is felyjng on mar]ét information that is fourteen hours old. If there have been p§sitive market
Iﬁoves during the New York trading day that will cause the Japanese market to rise when it later
opens, the stale Japanese prices will not reflect them, and the fund’s NAV will be artificially low.

Put another way, the NAV does not reflect the true current market value of the stocks the fund holds.
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On sucha day; a trader who buys the Japanese fund atthe “st‘ale”‘ price is virtually assu.fed ofa proﬁf

‘that c;in be réélized the next dajz’ by éelling; Taking advantage of this kind of shért-térm arbj‘t:rag‘e‘ B

:repeate‘dlvy in a single mutﬁal.fund is caI.led ‘ffiming"’ the fund. |

3_7.- H  Effective timing éaptures an arbitrage proﬁt, which cdmes do»lla.r~fc23.r-c‘lollar éut of ‘t.h‘e |

pockets of thg Iongéterrﬁ inyestors: the timer stéps in at thé last mom'ent ahd takes part of the 'b‘uy-v

| émd—hoid ﬁi%stofs’ vﬁ.psici:e. \&hen th_é market goes up, so thé nlext. day"s NAVis fedﬁéed fof thosé .whov' o

are stﬁ} iﬁ the fund. If the timer sells short on bad days the a_fbitrage has the éffect of making the

© next day’s.NAV lower than it wbuld otherwise have been, th.us magnifying the losses that investors '
ére éXpei‘iencing ina declin;ng market, - y

38 Besides the wealth ﬁ'anSfer of arbitrage (cal]éd “di]uﬁon”), timers also harfn their

, taxgét funds in a number of other ways. They impose their transaction costs on the long-term

- inv'e.st.c;rs. Indeed, trades ne‘ce.ssitate‘d by atimer’s fédempti ons can .als‘o ]ead to realizationof taxaBle'

‘ capital gains at an undesirable time, or may result in managers having to sell stock into a falling

" market, Some fund managers even enter-into spec_ial"invés’tments as an attempt'to “hedge” against ‘

| vti‘ming aétivity (instegd of just refusing t§ ai].ow it), thus deviatiﬁg altogeth'er- fr‘om the ostené‘ib]e |
: l,_ mvestment strategy of their ﬁmds, and incurring fﬁfther trahsactién costs. |

39, | 'fMu_tué] fund managérs, such as deféndant Malo‘ne, are aware of the damaging effect

L that timers have lon. their funds. While it is virtually i1ﬁp0ssib]e for fuﬁd méﬁagefs :tO identify every

] tifhing trade, large mévenieﬂtéin aﬂd out of funds - like those made bS) C‘anary, the Doe Defendan‘ts,

ACM Hedge Funds-- are easy for managers to spot. And mutuéi ﬁmd managers have tools to fight

~ back against timers. In the case, however, it was even éasiel' for the fund managers‘ to spot: ‘ohe

timér’s activity because that timer was Alliance Capital acting through the ACM Hedge Funds.
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46. o Fund managers, such as,defendant Malone, typically have the power simply to reject

v timt‘:rs"“ ﬁurchasés. As ﬁduciéﬁes for their investors, mutual fund managers afe ;)bligéd to do their
best to use .these weapons to protect their customers from the dilution that timing c‘a.uses.

41. The incentiﬂ;e»to the dgfendant mﬁfua] ‘funds to engage in such wrongdoing is ag

© follows: Typically a single management company sets up a number of mutual fun_ds to foﬁn_ a

- family.” While each mutual fiind is in fact its own company, as a préctical matter the management o L

o cofnpahy runs it. The portfolio manégers who make thé investme}nt decisions for tﬁe funds and the
execﬁﬁves to whom they répcrﬁ are all typically employees of the management company, not the
- ‘ mutual funds themselves. Still,v the management company 6wes ﬁduciéry dutieé to each fund and
B eacﬁ invéétor. |
| 42 The m_anagerﬁent coxhpany makes its profit from fees it charges the funds foy financial
L .adIVi_ ce aﬁci ofher services. These fees are typically a percentage of the assets inthe fuvh.d,"so the more
a'.s’sets in the family of funds, ‘thcxe more money the manager makes. The t‘imex" underétands thfé
‘. ..rpérfgctly, and fréqﬁent]y offers the manager more asse;s‘*in exchange for the right to time. Fund
’ hiénagéré v.lik[e defendahf Ma]fovn'e have succumbed to temp{ation and aI]owe;d invest&s iﬁbthe target

. funds to be hurt in exchange for additional money in their own pockets in the form of higher

- management fees. '

E ‘43: ‘ | Thus by keepmg money -- ofteﬁ many m11110n dollars - in the same famxly of mutual

- funds (whlle moving the moncy from fund to fund), Canary, the Doe Defendants, ACM Hedge Funds
| ' ass_urcc‘l ‘defendants Ma_lone and Schaffren that they would collect management and other fees on the
amount Whethgr it was in the target fund, 'the resting fund, or moving in between. In addition,

sometimes the manager would waive any applicable early redcmption fees. By doing so, the
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niénager wouid directly deprive th.e fund of rhoney that would hévé partially reimbursed thé fand for
. the imp;ict 6f timi_ng.‘ | | | | |
_ 44 ‘Asan addi“t’ional iﬁdncement for allowing ihe timiné’, fund v.mariég‘ejzrs oftén'récéived :
“sticky a'ssefs.’.’ These were {ypiqally.long—ténn 'invéstme.nts rﬁade not in the mutual ﬁind.in which
tl%ez ﬁming acti‘\fity was peﬁnitﬁd, but in :oné of tf;é 'fu‘nd mz‘méger’sv financial vchlcles (e.g.a hed'g.e" .
| fund run by the sar’né méliagér) fh_ét assured a stpady flow of fees to t‘h’enménég.e‘r.. |
| 45. Mor’em&r, by allowing Alliance Capital ’sown ACM Hedgé F unds to time the mutual
‘funds, Alliance Capital Was’ able fi;r’ch’er to increase tﬁé fees the mutu_a’l. fund ma.négers management
fees, the ACM Hédge_z Fqnds ’ f_emm's én‘d thg ACM Hedge Funds manager’s fees.
46. . These arran géme11fs Were never'disc}osed to mum:il. fund investors: On the contrary, | |
. “ many of tlje felevant mutﬁal fund prospeétuses @ntained materially misleading stafeménts assurmg ‘
o :invcs_;t'or's_ that the fund nlénégers discour%tged and worked to prevent mun'lfa]» fund timing.
THE SCHEME AT ALLIANCE CAPIT'A_L
- 47. buring the Class Perio‘d;défendants allowed Canz.iry,v the .Dvo‘e Defé'ndants, ACM :
Hédge Fundfs to tiine thé‘AlIianceBemstéin fuilds'in exchange for nﬁakirig ]:;rge in\./estments ini‘the '
.A: _ACM Hedgé Funds. | | | |
-48.  On September 3-, 2003, New_York Attorney Genera] Elliot Spitzer (ih_e “Attomney
‘ .G_‘eneralv”.) filed a complaint bcharging fraud, émong éthe; tlﬁngs, .ivn connection with the uﬂlawful :
practicés alleged herein. More speciAﬁcally,. the A&omey Geﬁerﬁl .a'lléged the‘- fo]loWing: “Canary |
developed a complex strafegy that al]dwed it to in effect sell mut_ﬁa] fLmds short and proﬁt 6n

declining NAVs.” Additionally, the Attorney General alleged:
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Bank of America. . .(i) set Canary up with a state-of-the art electronic
Jate trading platform, allowing it to trade late in the hundreds- of -
mutual funds that the bank offers to its customers, (ii) gave Canary
permission to time the Nations Funds Family (iii) provided Canary
* with approximately $300 million of credit to finance this late trading
and timing, and (iv) sold Canary the derivative short positions it
needed to time the funds as the market dropped. None of these facts
were disclosed in the Nations Funds prospectuses. In the process,
- Canary became one of Bank of Asmerica’s largest customers. The "
* relationship. was mutually beneficial in-that Canary made tens of -
" millions through late trading and timing, while the various parts of
the Bank of America that serviced Canary made millions themselves.

. . On‘Sepiémber 30, 2003,before the markets opened, Alliance Cépita]'anﬁounced the
following;

As has been publicly reported, the Office of the New York State
- Attorney General {"NYAG") and the United States Securities and
~ Exchange Commission ("SEC"), are investigating practices in the

mutual fund industry jdentified as "market timing" and "late trading”
_of mutual fund shares. ' : '

Alliance Capital Management L.P. ("Alliance Capital"), investment - -
~ adviser to the Alliance family of mutual funds, announced today that

it has been contacted by these regulators. in connection with this
- mutual fund investigation, and has been prov1dmg_ﬁxll.c_ooperatxon_ :

Alliance Capital also announced that, based on the preliminary results
.+ of its own ongoing internal investigation concerning mutual fund:
.. transactions, it has identified conflicts of interest in connection with -
certain market timing transactions. In this regard, Alliance Capital has -
suspended two of its employees, one of whom 1s a portfolio manager
of the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, and the other of whom is
- an executive involved with se]lmg Alliance Capital hedge fund‘ -
. products. "

| 50. " On October 1, 2'003, The Wall Street Journal reported that defendants Malone and

Schaffran were suspended because an internal inquiry found that “certain investors were allowed to
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. make rapid trades 1na mutual ‘fund managed by [defendant] Malone in e;(chan'ge for making ]arger
 investments in Alliance [Capital] hedge funds also run by [defendanﬂ Malone.

51, Additionally, The Wall Street Journal reported, with respéct to Canéry, that

" “[defendant] Stem s firm [Canary] appears to have arrangements allowing short—term tradmg with

Alliance F unds[ ]” As an example The Wall Street I oumal artlcle stated that “on the evenmg of Jan.

13, [defendant] Stern placed late trades throu ghBank of America’s trading system to se‘]l 4, 178,074 b_ :
shares ef Alliance Growth and Income Fund, which at that time woﬁld- have ambunted to ari,
appro?éimatel}"'Sl I million transaction.”

52.  The AllianceBemnstein funds’ prospectue gaQe investers no wanﬁng that their funds
woﬁld B‘e: uéed for timilmg, but rather created the misleading impression rthat Alliance Capitai
‘ideﬁtiﬁed"a“ﬁd barred timers from its bfunds. The prospectus goe.s' on to reserve the right ‘to shut
B " marke"tltkimers:dowﬁ: | |

o A Fund 'mayb 'r_efhse any order to purchase shares. In par‘tic‘ulerv, the
* .. Funds reserve the right to restrict purchases of shares (including

through exchanges) when they appear to.evidence a pattern of -

frequent purchases and sales made in response to short-term

con51deratlons
53. _Contrary to- the express langtiagcl confairied 1n the AllianeeBemstein funds’
| vprospectus, Alliance Capital ailoWed certain investors to‘make “frequent purcliases and sales” 4in ‘
_A responSe to short-term eovneiderations. |
54, VE‘vi‘dAence ef market timing iil fhe AIlianceBemstein funds shows that vsigniﬁcant
j market-t.iniing activity was occurrihg. For example, one conseqﬁence of market timi\ng is increased

turnover of portfolio holdings, as the manager buys or sell stocks to handle the rapid in-and-out of . -

cash flow from timers.

-22-




55, A‘nvex\am‘ple of 'défen‘dants’ fraudulent scheme is clearly shpwn if one loqks at the “
_Alliaﬁgé Befﬁs_t'ein Tech fund statistics. The AllianceBernstein Tech fund showea 2 sizablg upt‘ik‘:k

"‘_in‘vtu.r'nox?erb 1n2002, _Whén ﬂlepo.r:tfolio’s (Alliat%ceBemsteiri Tech fund) _tlirnover for the:yeér was .

.‘ 117%, accérdir;g to»thé Unite%l Stafés Securities and Exchange ‘Commiss‘ibn‘("‘SEé‘”) filings. In t‘he.j ‘

'  : preceding ﬁx}e yea_rs',ithe‘portfolio's (Al:l‘ianceBernstein T’ec;h fund) turnover ngyef tdﬁped.67% ar;d‘

-. .. : w:av"s aé ]ow-as 46% ili :2000.. in;vthe"éi)"( moxlths ending May 31, 2@03 , the fﬁnd's“tumovel-' was ‘l 16_%'.‘

| 56. There afe aiso sign_é of unusual cash ﬂ‘ow acﬁvity ) aﬁothér tip;off.of concentrated '
market timing. Data from fund-tracker Lippér Inc. (‘;Lipper”) showed money pouring in and out in
| patterns that showed that market timing.

- 57. Lipper estimates monthly net fﬁnd flows based on month-end net assets reported by
~the fuﬁd. -Lippér tﬁen backs out any increase in assets that appéar to be a result of market
| appvréci'étio.ﬁ; Based oﬁ its'information regarding the Al]ianéeBernstein Tech_‘fund”s ho]’dings.

' 58 ~In the m’iddlc of | 2001, a pattern developed -.of ‘cash ;movivng in and oﬁt : Of,_ -
- All‘iapceBems‘tein Teéh ﬁmd’s A-share class.

- 59. - For example,v in'April.. of that‘ycaf, $53.7 milii‘oh ﬂdwéd into th_e Al]iar‘l;:evBe'ﬁ-l.s.téir:)
Tech fund A-shares and .wit}‘ﬁn a month there was an outﬂoﬁv of $54.‘2“ million. A-shafes nonﬁally
N - carry an ﬁp-frbnt salés c‘:harge,‘ but vaccordi'ng to'the' prospéctus, there" is ﬁo. initial sales charge on -
' trans@ctions of $1,000,000 or more.

60. In Jung 2001, $66.8 million é'ame in, and in July $71.2 million flowed out. In January ‘.

2002, the AllianceBernstéin Tech fund A;sla,ares took in $184.5 million, and February saw an

outflow of $191.1 million.
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61. - .In February Qf 2003, those shares téok- in $157 million, and the March outflow was
$146.4. April. inflows were $63.3 million, and then May produced an outflow of ‘$62.2 million.

62. ‘Meanwhile, the other three share classes for the fund showed almost exclusively
outflows since late 2000.

63. In-light of the économic conditicns at the ‘timc, such activity vwas not typical and
clearly demonstrates that the defendants allowed certain investors to make rapid trades or market
time the fund in exchange for méking large investments in fhe ACM Hedge Funds.

64.  For long-term shareholders, increased portfélio turnover means higher trading costs,
and AIlianceBemsteiﬁ fundé ’ brokeragechmmission costs soared since 2001.

65.  The actions of the defendants have harmed plainﬁff and:members of the class. In
‘essence, the defendants’ actions of allowing market timing to occur have caused plaintiff and

members of the class’s shares to be diluted in value. | |

66.  Assuch, defendants.have brea_ched their ﬁduciary duties to plaintiff and the class by
lying to investors about their effoﬁ to curb market timers by entering into undisclosed agreements
intended to boost their fees and permitting their own ACM Hedge Funds to time the mutual funds.
As aresult, defendants héve v&olated the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the Investment Compaﬁy

Act, and common law fiduciary duties.

- UNDISCLOSED ADVERSE INFORMATION
67.  The ’market for the AllianceBemsteiﬁ funds were open, well-developed and efficient
atall relevant times. As a result of these materially false and misleading statements and failures to
disclose, the AlliaﬁccBemstein ﬁJﬂdS traded at distorted prices during the Class Period. Plaintiffand

other members of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired the AllianceBemstein funds relying
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upon the integrity of the NAV for the AllianceBemstein funds and market information relating to
the AllianceBemstein funds, and have been damagéd thereby.

68. | During the Class Period, defendants materially misled the investing public, thereby
distorting the NAV of the AllianceBernstein _funds, by é]lowing Canary, the Doe Defendants, ACM
Hedge Funds to time the A]lianceBelﬁstein funds. |

69. - Atall ‘relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized
| in this 'Compllaint directly or proximﬁtely caused or were a substantial-contributing cause of thé
damages sustained by plaintiff and other‘membérs of the Class.

| ADDITIONAL SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS

70. | As alleged herein, defendénts acted with scienter in that defendants kne@ that the
éublic documents and statements issued or dissemﬁ)a.ted in the name of the AllianceBernstein funds
wefe materially false and misieéding; knew that such statements or décuments would be issued or
disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or acquiesced in
the issuance or disse‘minatllon of such stafements or documents as prir;r]ary violation; of the federal
securities laws. As set forth elsewhere herein in detail, defendants, by virtue of their feceipt of
information reflecting the true facts regarding AllianceBemstein funds, their control over, and/or ‘
recetpt and/or modiﬁcation of AllianceBernstein funds allegedly materially misleading
ﬁisétatements and/or their associations with the AllianceBernstein funds which made them privy to
confidential proprietary information concerning thg AllianceBemsteiﬁ funds, participated in.tyhe
fraudulent scheme alleged herein.

71. Additionélly, ’the -defendants. were _hi ghly motivated to allow and facilitatc the

wrongful conduct alleged herein and participated in and/or had actual knowledgé of the fraudulent
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coﬁduct alleged herein. In eXchange for .allowing the unléwfu] préctices ai]eged he_rein,‘th.e
defendanté, among 6ther things, received i11creased management fées,from “stigicy a$sefs” as well
as an jnéfeésgd nﬁmber of transactions in and ‘out of thé fux_ldé,‘ ana were able to ‘;V)r()ﬁf i%tom
. ‘incr‘e’ased rétﬁfn#in the ACM Hedge Funds In short, defer)d‘ants sipho.t‘l‘evdvmoney out Qf tﬁé rvnuvtual-
"funds and into: the ACM ﬁeﬁgc—_: ’Fu.nd‘s and their own pock.cts‘ | |
72 Y‘The_'dlefendaﬁts were. mo“tivat'eidvto participate 1n fﬁ: Vwrong‘ﬁll vscliem:e b_yv tﬁe
enohnoué profits they derived thereby. Théy systematicallybursued the scheme with full knowledge
ofits 'conseqﬁences to other investors.

Applicabilit‘y Of-Presumptioln"Of Reliance:
“ Fraud-On-The-Market Doctrine

73, Atl é.]l relevant timés; the market for fhe AllianceBemstéin funds were an efficient
v ‘market for the fo_l]@yving reasbné, amohg bolt‘hers:
| | (a) ‘Thé AlligriceBéﬁxstéin funds mét fhe requifemenié. for‘:lii'st"ilng, and was "1ist¢d and
_"‘activél)‘rtrad‘ed ona highly efﬁﬁient and automated ma:ket; | -
| (b)vv Asa regﬁlatéd issUef,-théY_Alli‘anceBemsteix.l funds ﬁ]edb perio‘divc:pﬁbl.ic' repdrfs
- with the SEC;
| (c) Tﬁe A]lianceBemstein_ funds regularly communicated with public in‘ves.tofs:v_ia_’
‘_ ‘es.tab‘]ish.ed‘ market co;ﬁrﬁﬁﬁication fngchaﬁisms, iﬁc]uding thr‘oug‘h i"eg»\.ﬂar‘diss'eminé;ioris of press
- releases on tﬁe_ nétiénal circuits of major newsWire sérvicésv‘aﬁd'through other wide-rangillg public
‘disclosur‘es, such as_cothunications witﬁ the ﬁﬁéﬁcial press and other sﬁnilar .report.ing‘servi‘c.es;

~and
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v(d) 'fhé AllianceBemnstein fundé were fo']‘lowed by several securities analysts
employed by major bl'c;keragé firms who wrote reports which were distributed to tﬁe saies force and
certain custom,er;.of their respective byokerage firms. Eachof thesevr'equ_rts was publicly a_vailai:le
and e'nte:red the pﬁblic marketvp.lace. N

| 74 As aresult of the foregoing, ‘th‘e inarket fd? the AllianceBerhstein _ﬁmdé prﬁmpfly' ; | ;
"‘(‘:.ligesteti’ .cufrént-‘i;df(‘)nnatioﬁ regarding thé A]]iancéBé;nstein ﬁmds _frdm-all pub],icly.é\‘;éilable.
soﬁrcés and reflected such iﬁformation in. the AllianceBernstein funds” NAV. Under these _
circuni stances; all purchasers of the A]]ianceBemstein. funds durin.g the Class Period suffered similar
injury fhrougll their purchasé of the- Al,vliance'Bemsfein funds’ NAV at distorted prices and 2
| ﬁfésﬁmption of reliance applies. |

NO SAFE HARBCR

75.,  The StatUtofy safe harbor provided for foxward-lobking statements u‘ridér éeﬁ#iﬁ -
f,_‘cbivr:cu'n;ls_tances‘ v‘doe:s not apply to any of "thé allegedly false siaféments pleaded in thlis. complaihf.

' :Maﬁy 6f fhé Speéiﬁc sta_t‘i‘er'n‘ents.p]eaded herein W'e;é not identiﬁéd as “foﬂvard-lookin gvstat.emenfs”

. When rﬁade. To ‘ther éxtent there bv‘vevre any for@afd-looking sfatements, the.re v;rere nov'me§11ingful

‘ cautipnai‘y‘s’tvatementis idchtifﬁng ilﬂpéftant factors thatcould cause .act-uall r'esﬁllts, to differ tﬁateﬁally‘
from tho»sel‘in,t.he purpo_i'tedly' -‘for@ard—]obking’ statements. Altemafively, to the extent that the

- “statut()’ry safe harb.or déés app].;y to. any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, defendants are
]iablle.for. those false forward-looking statements becausé at the time each of those forward-looking

| stétements was made, the péﬂi cular sﬁeaker kn‘ew that the particular forward-looking statement was
false, and/ér the forward-looking statement was authorized and/or approved by an executive of.ﬁcer‘

of the defendants who knew that those statements were false when made.
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COUNT ONE
AGAINST ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REGISTRANTS FOR VIOLATIONS
OF SECTION 11 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

76. Piaintiff repeats and reallgges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set for; herein, except that, for purposes of this claim, plaintiff expressly exc]udes and disclaims any
allegation that coﬁld be construed as alleging fraua or i‘ntentional or reckless misconduct and
otherwise jn_co.rporétes the allegations contained above.

'77. . This ;laixﬁ is brought pursuant to Section | l‘of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77k,
on behalf of the p]vaimiff and 'ot‘her members of the Class agaihst the AIlianéeBemstein Registrants.

78. _ Al]ianceBemstein Registrants are the registrants for the AllianceBemsfein funds sold
to plaintiff and the other members of the Class and are statutorily liable under Section 11.
AllianceBernstein Registrants issued, caused to be issued and participated in the issuance of the
materially false and misleéding written statements and/or omissions of material facts that were
contained in the frospectusés. |

‘79. Plaintiff was provided with the AllianceBernstein Tech Fund Prospectus and,
similarly, prior fo purchasin g units of each of the other AllianceBernstein funds, all Class members
likewise receivea the appropﬁafe prospectus. Plaintiff and other Class members purchased shares
of the AllianceBemstein funds traceable to the relevant false and misleéding Prospectusgs and were
damaged thereby. |

| 80.  Asset forth hérein, the statements cbntaiﬁed in the Prosﬁectuses, when they became
effective, were materially false and misleading fér a number of reasons, including that they stated
that itvwas the practice of the Al]ianceBémstein funds to monitor and take steps to prevent timed

trading because of its adverse effect on fund investors, and that the trading price was determined as
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of 4 p.m. each trading day with respect to all investors when, in fact, select investors (Canary and
the Does named as defendants ﬁerein) were allowed to engage in timed frading. ;I’lle Prpspectuses
failed to disclose and misrepresented, inter alia, thé following rx;ateria]_ and adverse facts: (a) that
- defendants had entered into unlawﬁll ag;reelnents allowing Canary, the Doe Defendants and the
ACM Hedge Funds to time its trading of the A]lizmceBe.r_x;stein fur'lds shares; (b) that, pursuant to
those agréements, Ca.ﬁary, the Doe Defendaﬁts and the ACM Hedge; Funds regularly timed the
Ail.ianceBenmstein ﬁmds; (c) that, contrary to the representations in the Prospectuses, the
“AllianceBernstein funds only enforced their poliéy against frequent traders sélectively; (d) that the
defendants regularly allpwea Canary, the Doe Defendants and ;he ACM Hedge Funds to engage in
trades that were di‘sruptive. to the efficient management of the AllianceBernétein funds and/or
iﬁcreased the AllianceBemstein funds’ costs; thereby réduced the AllianceBemstein funds actual
perforrhance; an‘d (e)' the Prospectuses faﬂed to disclose that, pursﬁam to the uﬁlawful agreementé,
. the ADefendants, Canary and Doe Defer_mdants benefitted financially at the expense of
AllianceBernstein funds’ investors including plaintiff and othef members of the Class.
81. At the time they purchased the AllianceBernstein fuﬁds’ shares traceable to the
defective Prospectuses, plain.tiff aﬁd Class members were withbut kﬁowledge of the facts concerning
the false and misleading statements or omission alleged herein‘and could not reasonably have

possessed such knowledge. This claim was brought within the applicable statute of limitations.

-29-




| * COUNT TWO |
- AGAINST ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS, L.P., ALLIANCE -
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CORPORATION, ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

-L.P. . AND AXA FINANCIAL, INC. AS CONTROL PERSONS FOR VIOLATIONS OF

SECTION 15 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

82, Plaintiff repeats and rea]leges each and every allegatxon contamed above except that

o for purposes of this claim, plamuff expressly excludes and disclaims any allegatwn that could be

construed as allegmg fraud or intentional reckless misconduct and otherw1se'1nc‘orporates the : "

(S

allegations contained above.

83. This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 15 of the Securities Act against Alliance

- Capital»Managemem Holdings, L.P., Alliance Capital Management Corporation, Alliance Capital‘

’Management L.P., and AXA Financial, Inc. (collectively referred to as “Alliance Capital”) as a

ccontro} persons of AllianceBernstein Registrants. It is appropriate to treat these defendants as a
- group for p]ead‘ing purposes a.nd to presume that the fa]se misleading, and x'ncomp]ete informatiou v

*conveyed in the AlllanceBernstem funds publlc filin gs, press releases and other publ1cat10ns are the " , O

“ actions of Allmnce Cap1tal Management Hoidmgs L P.

84, A]hanceBemstem Reglstrants are liable under Section 11 of the Securities Act as set :

" forth herein.

85. Alliance Capital is a “control person” of the AllianceBemstein Registrants within -

- the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act, by virtue of its position of operational control and/or
‘ownership. At the time plaintiff and other members of the Class purchased shares of the
AllianceBernstein funds -- by virtue of their positions of control and authority over

AllianceBernstein Registrants directly and indirectly, had the power and authority, and exercised the

same, to cause AllianceBemnstein Registrants to engage in the wrongful conduct complained of
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 herein. AllianceBernstein Registrants. issued, caused to be issued, and participated in the issuance
- of materially false and misleading Statements in the Prospectuses.
/86 Pursuant to Section 15 of the Seéuritiés Act, by reason of the foregoing, Allance

Capital is liable to plainfiff _an‘d the other members o‘f the Classbfo_r -thevAlI-iance Capital -

o Management’s primary violations of Section 11 of the Secunties Act.

, ;‘87; ‘ By vvinﬁé of the foregbing, p],aintiff and the <)th¢r members of the C_iass are entjtled |
to damages a'gains{f Alliance Capital ‘MaAnagement Holdings LP.

COUNT THREE |
_ VIOLATION OF SECTION!10(b) OF
- THE EXCHANGE ACT AGAINST AND RULE 10b-5 .
' PROMULGATED THEREUNDER AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS

- 88.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every a]llegatior_l coritainéd above as if fu]iy'
- set forth lieréin except for Claims brough.t pursuant tb the Securities Act.
8'9. " During tlie ClaSs Period, each of the defendan ts ca.h-'ic‘ec‘l out avplaﬁ,.sch‘évl\ne andééurse
‘ "ﬁ;f conduct which was iﬁténaéd foand,»throug-l‘]out tf)e Class P.e,riod, did de‘c‘ei_\'ie the invgstin g public,
in.cl_uding;p'léinvtiff and the.other Class r;lembcrs, as»all.egved vhérein‘; and cause'_pla_ir;tiff and ofher
: .Y'Z,rr.xe'mﬁt_:r_s of the Class to purchase AlliaﬁccBeméfein funds s 1;1reé or intel.'est‘s‘ at distor_fed ‘pn'c'es and
8 -oth‘en‘wise sufferéd damagés. In furtherance of thié unlawfi I scheme, p]aq and course of cpnduct,
'aéfendaﬁts, and each qf them? took the actions set forth heralin. | |
90, Defendanté (I) employed device;, schemésé and artifices to deﬁ'aud; (ii) made uﬁtrue '
statements of material fact and/br omitted to state material facts néceséary to make the statements
’noi misleading; and (iii) engaged n aéts, practices, and a course of business Which oﬁerated as a

fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the AllianceBernstein funds, including plaintiff and other
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' members of the Class, ibn én_ e;ff(v)rt‘to enrich themvselvesA thfough undiéélosed manipulative trading
A tactics by Wﬁi'cﬁ 'they':wrongfqlly‘appropriat_ed Al]ién_ceBernstcih _vfl_mds’ asse;ts and 'othexbwise‘_‘ a
5 ‘distortedvthe pricin‘.g of their securities in Vio]a‘tion of Section 10(‘5} of the EXéhangé Act and Rule
105-5. All defeﬂda’nts aré_ 'sued as prixnafy 'par:tiéipdrjté"in the Wroﬁgﬁxl and illegal conduc.;t an'd‘..‘
séherﬁé chérged' herein.. |
| 9] | ‘]‘)‘éfendé‘r‘].t.s, i11di\}iduéiliy and m cOncert,' direct]y aﬁd i‘nd;iréctly., by th‘e‘ usé, meaﬁé’ or |
ins‘tmlln.éﬁtalities‘ of interstate .cbmmerce" and/ér of the mails, engaged and bérti‘dpated ina
’_icontimious coutse of conduct to conceal adverse material vinformation about the AllianceBernstein
funds operations, as spgciﬁed herein. |
92, These ciefendants elriployed devices, schemes and alti_ﬁces to defraud and a course
of cénduct and scheme as qllgg_ed ,heli‘ein‘to unlawﬁi]lymanipulaté énd profit from s’ecret'ly timed
e tra:;jing aﬁd tvhereby‘ engageé in_"t‘falilse‘lction‘s‘, p“rﬁéticfe_s and a course of bﬁsiness wﬁich operated. as
! " afraud and deceit upon plaintiff and memb;;_s of the Class. | |
) 93 : | Thé de'fel_‘ld;i‘rltsyhaduéctﬁél kﬁoWlédée o_f the mi;sfépreéé‘ntaﬁons: and omis»sio-ns_ :of |
' »_-mate'riaitl’ faéts. set forth hér;afﬁ, or act§d- with reckless diérega@rd for the sruth in that they failed to
i _’: asceﬁain a.nd to disclo.se'such‘ facté; even th‘du“gvhvsuc‘:h'fa‘cts W¢fe av_aill'abie to them T' Such defendaﬁts’ |
méteriai misrepresentatjoﬁs aﬁ;l/ox' omissio’ns‘ weré doneikno_wingly orrecklessly and for the purposé
‘_and effect of concealing the truth. _V |
94, Asaresult of the dissemination of the materiﬁlly fa]s;é and ‘mis‘]e.adin-g information
and failure to disclose material facts, as set forth ébove, the mérket_ pricé of the AIliaﬁceBemstcim
funds were distorted during the Cllass Period such that they did not reflect the riské and costs of the |

continuing course of conduct alleged herein. In ignorance of these facts that market prices of the
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shares were distorted, and re]ying.direc'tly or indirectly on the false and misleading statements made
by the defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the securities trade, and/or on the
absence of material adverse information that was known to or recklesslyldisregarded by defendants
_buf not disclosed in public statements by defendants during the Class Period, plaintiff and the other
members of the C,]éss acquired the .shares or interesfs inthe AllianceBemstein funds during the Class
Period at disfo.rted prices and were dal-naged tvhereby..

95. At ‘the tiﬁ'le of said misrepresentations and omissions, plaintiff and other members of
~ the Class weré ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had pléintiff and the other
>members of the Class and the mérke;tplace known of the truth concerning the AllianceBernstein

funds’ operations, which were not disé]osed By defendants, plaintiff and other members of fbe Class
would not have purchased or otherwise acquired their shares or, if they had acquired such shares or
other interests duriﬁg the Class Period, they would not have done so at the distorted pﬁces_ which
| they pai.d. |

96. By virtue of the foregoing, defendvants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange

Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgéted_thereunder. |
-~ 97.  Asadirect anci proximate result of defénda.nts’ \ﬂ'rongful cdnduCt, plainﬁff and the
other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respecti\{e purchases and sgﬂ.es

of the AllianceBemstein funds. shares during the Class Period.
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COUNT FOUR
AGAINST ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS. L.P. ALLIANCE

' CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CORPORATION, ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
' L.P., AND AXA FINANCIAL. INC. AS A CONTROL PERSON FOR VIOLATIONSOF

SECTION 20(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

98 Pla1nt1ff repeats and reallegcs each and every allegatlon contamed above as 1f fully

set forth herem except f‘or Claims brought pursuant to the Securmes Act.

99. ~ This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act agamst AXA E

~ Financial, Inc. as control persons of Al]iance Capital Management Corporation; against Alliance
Capital Management Corporation as control persons of Alliance Capital Management Holdmgs, LP;

against Alliance Capital Management Holdmgs, L.P. as control person of Alhance Cap1tal

’ Management L.P.; against Alliance Capital Management L.P. as control person of the

- AllianceBernstein Registrants; and against the AllianceBernstein Registrants as control person of _

- the AllianceBernstein funds.

100. - It 1s appropriate to treat these defendants aé_a group for pleadin'g-p,urp'oses‘ andvto

presume that phe" matenally false, mis]eading,and incomplete information conveyed in th"e“ :

5 ‘AllliancéBex:nstein funds” public ﬂlings, press releases and other publications are the collective

- actions of Alliance Capital Management Holdings, L.P., Alliance Capital Management Corporation,

_Alliance Capital Management L.P., AllianceBernstein Registrants and AXA Financial, Inc.

101. ~ Alliance Capital Management Holdings, L.P., Alliance Capifa] Management .

Corporation, Alliance Capital Management L.P., AllianceBernstein Registrants and AXA Financial,
Inc. are controlling persons of the AllianceBemnstein funds within the meaning of Section 20(a) of

~ the Exchange Act for the reasons alleged herein. By virtue of their operational and management

control of the AllianceBernstein funds’ respective businesses and systematic involvement in the -
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ﬁ;auaule;lt scheme alleged herein, Alliance Capital Managmném Holdings, L.P., ‘Alliance Capital |
Manégement Cor_boration, Alliance Capital Management L.P., AllianceBe_mste_iﬁ Registrants and
AXA F.;'riahcial,. inc. each had the powé:r to influence and control and did inﬂugncé and control,
‘ c'liliectl.y. or iridire@t]y, %he deéi’sidn—making and actions of thebAIliaﬁceBemste-in funds, iﬂcluding the‘

| .co.nt'ent‘a‘nd dissemination of the vaﬁoﬁs statements. thch plaintiff contends aré .false ‘avn'd
B miéleading. All‘iahé‘e“ ‘:.C‘a’pital Mané}gémént Holdings, L.P., Alliance Cépi‘tz;l _Méﬁage@én{» o

E . Corpora‘;ion, Alliancé Caﬁital Ménagement LP., Al]iance.Bernste‘inv Registrants and AXA Finar_)cial,
:. Inc. had the ability to prevent the ‘i‘ssuanc‘e of the statements alleged to be false and misleading or
cause such statéments to be corrected.

_ 102. In particulér, cachof Alliancé Capital Managerﬁent Holdings, L.P., Alliance Capitalv
Management Corporatioﬁ, Aliiance Capita]_ Management LL.P., AllianceBemstein Reéistrants and H
AXA iﬁnz‘mcjﬁl, Inc. had direct and supervisory i11Vo]ve1n_ént in tl;ne operatiohs. of the

| Allian_ceBemstei.n funds and, therefore, _is presumed to have had ‘t'he,;;Jower fo contfol of influence
- the particular tra_nsactions givingﬁse to the securities viélaﬁons as al]eged hergin, énd e)gerciseci the
' same | | |
103, As set forth ai;ove,. Alliance Cavipi‘tz‘llManagemént Ho]dingé, L.P., Alliarice Capital |
: Ménagénﬂehf Corporation, Al]iaﬁce Capital Manage.inenf L.P., ‘Alliarjxlt:eBerirlStein RegistrantsAand
AXA Financial, Inc. each violated Sectién 10(b) and Rule 1Cb—5 by their acts and omissions as
.allegéd in this corﬁpilaiht. .By .virtue bf their positioﬁs as controlling persons, Alliance Capital 7
Mahégement ‘Ho]di_ngs, 'L.P., A]liance Capi‘ta] Manégement Corporation, Alliance Capital
Management L.P., AllianceBernstein Registrants and AXA Financial, Inc. are liable pursuant to

~ Section 20(5) of the Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful
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. - conduct, plaintiff and other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their

o purchases of AllianceBernstein funds securities during the Class Period.

COUNT FIVE
VIOLATION OF SECTION 36(a) OF THE INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT OF 1940
AGAINST ALL DEFEN DAN TS

104,  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every al]egatlon contained above bas if fully |

S ~"set‘fo'r‘th herein.

'105. - This claim for reliefis brought pursuant to Section 36(a) of the Investment Company

" Act of 1940 against defendants. Under Section 36(a), an implied pn’vaie right of action exiéts. See

" McLachlan v, Simon, 31 F. Supp.2d 731 (N.D. Cal. 1998).
106.  Under Sectvion 36(a) of the Investment Company Act, defendants ahall be deemed to -
 owea ﬁdnciady duty to plaintiff and other class members with respect to the feceipt of fees and
.chpe11éatjn11 tnat defendant_s ‘re”cei‘ve for servicen of a material nature.
107, . Here defendants have devised and implemented a echelne to obtain su'bstantia].fees
| "‘and other income for themselves and their affiliates by allowing Canaly, the Doe Defendants ACM "
- :'__Hedge Funds to engage n txmmg of the AllxanceBemstem funds’ throughout the Class Perlod and‘ ‘
- in vnolatlon of thexr ﬁdumary dutles to their customers, i.e. plamtlff and class membe1 s.
| 108. Defendants engaged in-such scheme to only beneﬁtv itself and then'_afﬁhat'ea -.by
| , alllovvs'iing.. Canary, th_e Doe Defendants, ACM Hedge Fundsv: te -engage in tim'ing of  the
vAlIianeeBemstein‘ﬁinds named herein in return for substantial fees and other income. :
1 09. Defendants have breached the :ﬁduciafy duties it owes to plaintiff and other ciass

" members by, among other things, devising this plan and scheme solely for its own benefit and by
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. failing to reveal to them material facts which would allow them to make informed decisions about
B the true value aﬂd performance of the Fund.

11 0_. Plamtlffs and other class members have beeni mj ured asa result of defendants br each .

- of ﬁduc1ary duty and v1o]at10n of Section 36(a) of the Investment Act of 1940

COUNT SIX

B VIOLAT]ON OF SECTION 36(b) OF THE INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT OF 1940 ;

- AGAINST ALY DEFENDANT S

111. - Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every al}egation contained above as if fully

set forth herein.
112.  Thisclaim for reliefis brought pursuant to Section 36(b) of the Investment Company

' _‘ Act qf 1940 against defeﬁdants.

113, - Under Section 36(b) of the Invesfrnent Company Aét, defendants shall be deemed fo

owe a fiduciary duty' to pléintiffand,other class members with respect t’o_thé récéibt,__of fees and: :

_co‘mpe‘néati‘on that deféndéﬁté rec_:éijve»:fﬁr' sérﬂlices of a material haﬁpré.

1 14. | Hefé, defendént_s h:;ve de\z‘is‘ed‘ and impleme;:‘nted:a‘scheme to obtain silbs"tan‘.ciél fees
- ,atn_cul bthef iﬁébme for theniéel’yés and their:aff:'ll‘iates by alléwing Cahary, the D‘oe:Defendarits;, ACM
Hedge F.und»sv to e‘ng'.age in Vtifni‘ng of the .AllialiceB‘éfﬁsieili funds th‘roughbut‘,t.he .C“lass Period and
B in.vviolation of their fiduciary duti‘es to their cgstorhefs, i.e., plaintiff and class merﬁbers. |
115. | Defendants engaged in si:ch scheme to only bencﬁt itself and their aﬁ?liétes By
: aljt;wing Canafy, the Doe Defendaﬁts, ACM Hedge Fuﬁds 1o engage timing of tﬁe A].lianceBemstein

- funds in return for substantial fees and other income.

116. Defendants h‘avve breached the fiduciary duties it owes 1o plainti'ff and »’othér Class

- members by, among other things, devising this plan and schemg solely for its own benefit and by
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o failing to revealvto them material facts which would allow them to make infomed'decisi'()ns about

' ‘the true value and performance of the Fund.

117.. Plaintiffand other class members have been injured as :a feém; of defendants’ breach

- of fiduciary duty and violation of Section 36(b) of the Investment Act of 1940,
COUNT SEVEN |

‘ ~-AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS -

FOR BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTIES

1 1:8. Plaintiff xepests and realleges each and every a].le;gation contained obovo as'if fully
,sot forth herein. | |

119. . Plaintiffand the C]assplaced their‘ trusf_and confidencein Ailiance_.Caﬁﬁal to manaée
the assets .‘rhey invested jn-ﬂ)e AliianceBemstein funds. -

120. Plaihtiff and the Class reasonably expected that Alliance Capital would honor its

~ obligations to the them by, amon'glotherithing_s, observing the securities laws -and honoring the IR

. ‘réprosenﬁétioﬁs made in the‘Al']i-ancevBemstein fﬁﬁ.ds’ 'prospéCtuses.
o 121 lhance Cap1tal alded and abetted by the other Defendants Who aro co—consp1rators -
; ) breached its ﬁdumary duties to the P]amtxff and the Class by v1olatmg the securltles laws and

B R breachmg express and 1mp11ed representatxons contamed in the AlhanceBernstem funds prospectuses
for the benoﬁt of the AIhanceBernstem funds and each of the other defendants. |

122. Each of the Defendants was an active partxmpant in tﬁc breach of ﬁduc1a1y duty who
pammpated in the b1each for the purpose of advancing their own mterests

123, Plaintiff and the Class have been specielly injured by defendants’ .wro_:ngdoing. For
| example, thosé class members who redeemed their s,hares during m‘é Class Period received less than

what they would have been entitled to had certain individuals not engaged in illegal market timing.
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Additionally, certain mefnbers of the Class (i.e., those who purchased their mutual fund shares

- legally), were treated differently than those purchasers that were market timers.

124.  Alliance Capital aided and abetted by the other Défendants, who are also co-

" conspirators, acted in bad-faith, for personal gain and in furtherance of his, hér or its own financial

: advantage in connection with the wrongful conduct complained of in this complaint.

125 ‘As aAd‘if‘ectz and proximate resuit of the defendants’ forégoing breaches of ‘ﬁc:iuciary“ ‘
dutvies,' pldintiff and the members of the Cléés _havé suffered damages.
1"26.‘ Alliance Capital and the other Défendants, as.aiders, abettors, and co-conspirators,
aré each jbintly and se§era]1y liable for an amount to be determined at trial.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff on behalf of himself and of the Class pray for relief and judgment,

- as follows: -

(a) Deciaﬁng this actibﬁ to be a class action pursuant to Rule 23(a) and (i))t3) of '
the Federai Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of thg Cléss dgﬁned hgreiﬁ;
| (b) Awarding pléinﬁffs and the members of the Clas>s déllxageé ih‘anbamount whi(:h |
~may be provexi at trial, together with interest thereon; |
N (c) v Awarding plaintiffs aﬁd the mgﬁb'ers of ﬂ]e Class ére—judgxﬁent and post~

Judgment intereét, aé‘welll as their reasonable attorne‘y.s' and éxpeﬂs’ witness fees and
othér COSts;

| (d) Awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and propér

including any extraordinary equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted by law or |
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: equity'to attach, impound or otherwise restrict the defendants' assets to assure

plamtlffs have an cffectwe remedy, and

~.‘(e) Such other rellef as this Courc deems appropmate . :

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED -

" Plainti ff Hereby kdemands a tna] byj Jury.

 Dated October 7, 2003

E Respectfully subrmtted | _

CAULEY GELLER BOWMAN & RUDMAN,
LLP

By~_i/ Ld», \‘P"/,_X—té]

Samuel H. Rudhan (SR- 7957) .
Robert M. Rothman (RR- 6090)

- David A. Rosenfeld (DR-7564)

200 Broadhollow Road, Suite 406
Melville, NY 11747 ‘

(631) 3(7 7100

SCHHFFRIN & BARROWAY LLP

Marc A. Topaz ,

“Richard A. Maniskas
-Three Bala Plaza East

Suite 400

* Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004
(610) 6677706

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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